KNOX COUNTY RETIREMENT AND PENSION BOARD
September 24, 2018
The Knox County Retirement and Pension Board met in regular session on Monday, September
24,2018, at 1:30 P.M. in the Large Assembly Room, City-County Building, Knoxville, Tennessee.
The following members were present: Chairman Chris Caldwell, Proxy for Mayor Jacobs,

Commissioner Hugh Nystrom, Vice Chairman, Ms. Tracy Foster, Secretary, Commissioner Brad Anders,
Commissioner Larsen Jay, Commissioner John Schoonmaker, Ms. Jennifer Hemmelgarn, Mr. Zack Webb
and Mr. Garrett Raiden.
Also present at the meeting were:
USI Consulting Group: Mr. Bob Cross, Mr. Adam Davies and Ms. Brenda Fiddler
Legal Counsel: Mr. Bill Mason, Ms. Ashley Trotto, Mr. Charles Burks and Mr. John Owings
Attorneys: Mr. Keith Burroughs and Ms. Mary Ann Stackhouse
Retirement Staff: Ms. Kim Bennett, Ms. Jennifer Schroeder, Ms. Terri Chase, Mr. Zack Cole, Ms.
Savannah Russell and Ms. Mitzi Stooksbury
Others in attendance: Mr. Wayne Sellers, Nationwide, Mr. Nick McBride, Register of Deeds Office,
Mr. Ed Shouse, Trustees Office, Mr. Tom Spangler, Sheriff, James Carson, Sheriff's Office, Ken
Clabough, Sheriff's Office, and members of the public
INRE: CALL TO ORDER
Chairman Caldwell presided and called the meeting to order.
IN RE: AMENDMENTS TO AGENDA
Ms. Bennett stated that there was an amendment to the spread of record and the fee schedule that

was emailed to Board members prior to the meeting.
SWEARING IN OF NEW BOARD MEMBERS
Mayor Glenn Jacobs was sworn in prior to the Board meeting and appointed Chris Caldwell as his

proxy. Legal counsel, Mr. John Owings, swore in the following new Board members: Mayor's Proxy, Chris
Caldwell, Commissioner Brad Anders and Commissioner Larsen Jay.
NOMINATING COMMITTEE NOMINATIONS FOR OFFICERS AND VOTE

The Nominating Committee consisted of Commissioner John Schoonmaker, Mr. Zack Webb and

Ms. Jennifer Hemmelgarn. Commissioner Schoonmaker stated the Nominating Committee proposed the
current Officers, Chris Caldwell, Chair; Hugh Nystrom, Vice Chair; and Tracy Foster, Secretary, making up
the Executive Committee, continue in their same positions. Ms. Bennett asked for additional nominations.
There were no additional nominations. The Board unanimously approved.
CHAIRMAN APPOINTMENT OF COMMITTEES

Mr. Caldwell appointed the committees as follows:

+ Disability Committee: Commissioner Larsen Jay, Chairman of Disability Committee,
Commissioner Hugh Nystrom, Ms. Tracy Foster, Ms. Jennifer Hemmelgarn and Mr. Garrett
Raiden




e Document Committee: Commissioner Hugh Nystrom, Chairman of Document Committee,
Commissioner Brad Anders, Mr. Chris Caldwell, Ms. Jennifer Hemmelgarn and Mr. Zack Webb
¢ Investment and Actuarial Committee: Mr. Zack Webb, Chairman of Investment Committee,
Commissioner Hugh Nystrom, Commissioner John Schoonmaker, Commissioner Larsen Jay
and Mr. Chris Caldwell
IN RE: APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF AUGUST 27, 2018
Chairman Caldwell presented the minutes for August 27, 2018. Commissfoner Anders made a

motion to approve the minutes for August 27, 2018. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Nystrom
and unanimously approved.
IN RE: APPLICATIONS FOR RETIREMENT — DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN, LUMP SUM DISTRIBUTION
AND AUTHORIZATION OF CREDITED SERVICE BENEFIT BASED ON COMPLETED YEARS OF
SERVICE

The following applications for retirement and the credited service benefit based upon

completed years of credited service at the date of retirement, as provided in the Defined Benefit Plan,
were presented for consideration:
NAME DEPARTMENT CREDITED SERVICE EFFECTIVE DATE
Hobart Bailey EPW 39 years 5 months October 1, 2018
A motion was made by Ms. Hemmelgarn to approve the application for retirement under the Defined

Benefit Plan as presented and to authorize Trustee, State Street Bank, to make payment of the monthly
benefits and credited service benefit. The motion was seconded by Mr. Raiden and unanimously approved.
IN RE: APPLICATIONS FOR RETIREMENT — UNIFORMED OFFICERS PENSION PLAN

The following applications for retirement and the credited service benefit based upon

completed years of credited service at the date of retirement, as provided in the Uniformed Officers
Pension Plan, were presented for consideration:

NAME DEPARTMENT CREDITED SERVICE EFFECTIVE DATE
James R. Jones Sheriff 38 years 6 months October 1, 2018
Deanna H. Williams Sheriff 27 years 10 months October 1, 2018

A motion was made by Commissioner Nystrom to approve the application for retirement under the
Uniformed Officers Pension Plan as presented and to authorize Trustee, State Street Bank, to make
payment of the monthly benefits and credited service benefit. The motion was seconded by Commissioner
Anders and unanimously approved.

Mr. Burroughs stated his objection to the approval of the UOPP applicants’ retirement to the extent
the calculations include vacation cash out. Mr. Burroughs asked if any applicant calculation included
vacation cash out and stated that if no vacation cash out was included, the applicant would not be named
in the ongoing litigation. Mr. Burroughs requested the release of UOPP applicants’ vacation cash out
information, contingent upon the individual applicant's permission, to avoid suing a retiree unnecessarily.
Mr. Owings agreed to correspond with UOPP applicants Jones and Williams about Mr. Burroughs's request.

Mr. Owings responded to Mr. Burroughs's motion to intervene as follows:
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Each month, the Board receives a Motion to Intervene from Keith Burroughs. The Board
acknowledges the Motion at each meeting. The County’s Motions have been substantively identical except
for the addition of the objection to the Settlement Proposal for the month of September 2018.

The County alleges that the Board's staff has been violating Knox County Ordinance No. O-06-4-
101 and the 2007 Charter by including vacation cash out in the calculation of pension benefits. However,
both the Ordinance and the Charter include the following language: “the County’s expected additional
annual cost of the Pension is projected to be about 5.9% of participant payroll, or $1.6 million the first year,
over and above the 6% of participant payroll currently contributed by the County to the existing defined
contribution retirement plan”.

This language, present in the substantive text of both the Ordinance and the Charter, defines the
term “salary” as payroll currently contributed to the Asset Plan. In 2007, the payroll contributed to the Asset
Plan included vacation cash out. Thus, the Board and its staff have fully complied with the terms of the
Knox County Charter.

Additionally, the Ballot that Knox County voters relied on in adopting UOPP did not reference
“salary” at all. Instead, it included the same language quoted above. The voters did not vote for “salary”
as the County has argued on numerous occasions. They voted for a pay component consistent with the
Asset Plan. That is what the Board has administered since UOPP’s inception.

The County then argues that the Sheriff's 2016 change to its vacation policy exposed the County
to additional financial obligations without consideration and approval by Knox County. This is inaccurate
and misleading. In accordance with IRS guidance, UOPP includes in its pension calculation: bona fide
vacation leave cash outs. The Board's Legal counsel gave its opinion that the vacation cash out
contemplated by the 2016 Sheriff's policy was “bona fide.” UOPP, including "bona fide” vacation cash out,
was approved by the Commission in 2007, by the voters in 2012, and again by Commission in 2014. The
2016 change to the Sheriff's policy did not increase Knox County funding and thus did not require additional
approval by Commission. Commission had already authorized the Board to administer UOPP, including
bona fide vacation cash out, on two prior occasions. In fact, the 2014 Commission resolution was approved
by the current Law Director Bud Armstrong “as to form and correctness”.

The County also asserts that Ms. Bennett's memo to the Sheriff in 2016 announces the construction
of UOPP was beyond her authority. The memo simply explained that UOPP would be administered as
written, in accordance with its terms and that vacation cash out would only be included if it was “bona fide.”
The Executive Director was the appropriate person to describe the terms of the retirement plans to Knox
County officials.

On page 4 of the Motion, the County alleges that the phrase "leave cash out” was not in the plan
that was adopted by the voters in 2007 or in 2012. The phrase “leave cash out” was not required to be
included in the plan in 2007. Instead, the IRS concluded that the phrase was deemed to be included in the
definition of “post-severance compensation” which was specifically included in the plan. The County is
mistaken with respect to the plan in effect at the time of the 2012 Charter amendment. Leave cash out is




specifically included in Section 6.6 of the referenced UOPP document. The phrase was included following
new guidance published by the IRS which revised the guidance in effect in 2007.

At the end of that statement, Mr. Owings requested the excerpt of the transcript of the September
7, 2018, hearing and the facts of the case be attached to meeting minutes.
IN RE: APPLICATIONS FOR RETIREMENT -~ ASSET ACCUMULATION PLAN AND
AUTHORIZATION OF CREDITED SERVICE BENEFIT BASED ON COMPLETED YEARS OF
SERVICE

The following applications for retirement and the credited service benefit based upon

completed years of credited service at the date of retirement, as provided in the Asset Accumulation

Plan, were presented for consideration:

NAME DEPARTMENT CREDITED SERVICE EFFECTIVE DATE
Foster Arnett, Jr. CntyClk 10 years 2 months October 1, 2018
David Ball IT 28 years 1 month October 1, 2018
Doug Bataille Parks & Rec 25 years 1 month October 1, 2018
Roger Bault EPW 19 years 2 months October 1, 2018
Richard Caldwell Sheriff 20 years 2 months October 1, 2018
Hermon Dickerson Il Sheriff 21 years 9 months October 1, 2018
Rebecca Gibson ComSvcs 15 years 8 months October 1, 2018
Jon Gustin IT 24 years 3 months October 1, 2018
Robert Keeler PropAsor 37 years 7 months October 1, 2018
Angela Kelly Health 13 years 2 months October 1, 2018
Dan Kelly MPC 41 years 3 months October 1, 2018
Betty Mahan MPC 21 years 2 months October 1, 2018
Richard Moran IT 40 years 4 months October 1, 2018
Paul Russo Sheriff 14 years 10 months October 1, 2018
Catherine Shanks SessCrt 23 years 0 months October 1, 2018
Jo E Washburn MPC 32 years 2 months October 1, 2018
Ruby Whitfield Schools 9 years 11 months October 1, 2018

A motion was made by Commissioner Nystrom to approve the applications for retirement under the
Asset Accumulation Plan as presented and to authorize the Directed Custodian, Wells Fargo Bank, to make
disposition of the benefits upon certification from USI and to authorize the Trustee, State Street Bank, to
make payment of the credited service benefit. The motion was seconded by Ms. Hemmelgarn and
unanimously approved.
IN RE: REPORT OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Bennett reported on the following items:

¢ FY18 Audit Status/ Internal Audit in progress — The FY18 audit of E911 is

in progress. The Retirement office ministerially handles the contributions to the




E911 plan, but does not have jurisdiction to administer that Plan. The internal
audit is scheduled to be complete by the first week of October.
e Denver Investment Conference September 11-13 — The US| Denver

Conference was scheduled September 11 to 13. The conference involved
meeting several of the mutual fund managers and staff. The Board Members
and staff that attended the conference were Ms. Foster, Ms. Bennett, Ms.
Schroeder, Mr. Cole and several US! representatives.
New Board Member Orientation — Orientation for new Board members was September 17, 2018.
IN RE: REPORT OF INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
e Monthly Rates of Return — Mr. Webb presented the rates of return for the Defined

Contribution Plans and stated the overall rates of return are in line with the investment
objectives. USI's presentation of defined contribution and defined benefit plan additions,
deductions, investment earnings, and net increase for the quarter was presented and
discussed.

IN RE: REPORT OF LEGAL COUNSEL

Mr. Mason had no report.

Mr. Burks deferred comment to Mr. Owings.

Mr. Owings presented a draft of a settlement proposal. Legal counsel proposed the Board adopt
the settlement agreement to resolve all pending disputed cases with the County. The proposed settlement
caps the 43-day vacation cash out, keeps consistency with all other Knox County plans and is in line with
current Board interpretation of the administration of UOPP. If approved by Knox County, the Board agrees
to consider adopting an amendment to UOPP to cap vacation cash out at 43 days. The cap would be
applied to the calculation of benefits, and that cap would only be increased in the future upon both the
Board's and Commission’s approval. The proposal would require Knox County to dismiss all lawsuits and
provides for the Commission to consider reimbursement of $5,000 to each individual defendant for
attorney’s fees up to $50,000 total. Currently, seven officers have retained individual counsel in response
to the lawsuits filed against them by Knox County. There would also be an appropriate release signed by
Knox County. The proposal does not currently include a signature page. Mr. Owings stated his opinion that
the Mayor or the Knox County Commission could sign the settlement proposal. He also stated for the record
that the Mayor and the Sheriff are both in favor of the settlement. Mr. Burroughs stated his objection to Mr.
Owings opinion that the Mayor or Commission could sign the settlement proposal.

Commissioner Nystrom stated his support of settlement discussions, in accordance with the court’s
urging. Commissioner Jay asked for a description of the compromise being proposed. Mr. Owings
responded the Knox County Law Director believes that vacation cash out should not be included in the
calculation of retirement benefits. The Board has been administrating with the inclusion of up to 43 days’
vacation cash out. The proposal caps the vacation cash out to 43 days and can only be exceeded when
approved by the Board with Commission approval. Mr. Burks said one of the concerns Knox County raised




was the absence of a cap to vacation cash out under UOPP. In the past, the Sheriff had the right to allow
as much vacation cash out as that official deemed necessary. The Sheriff would still have discretion to
grant vacation cash out, but the Board is bound to the cap of 43 pensionable days under the settlement
proposal. Mr. Burks added that all members must be treated consistently in order for the plan to be qualified
by the IRS. The settlement proposal allows a qualified plan to be in place and recommends the settlement
terms be presented to the court as a proposed order.

Commissioner Jay inquired if the settlement proposal had been presented to opposing counsel.
Mr. Burks replied they received it the same way the Board did. Without official authorization from the Board,
the client, Mr. Owings and Mr. Burks are unable to make an official offer. Due to the legal objection stated
by Mr. Burroughs, the Law Director is expected to be opposed to the settlement.

Commissioner Anders asked what would happen if the Board later approves a calculation of over
43 days, but the Commission does not. Mr. Owings responded that both the Board and Commission would
have to approve any such future UOPP amendment to pay benefits over 43 days.

Mr. Burks reported the declaratory judgement action filed by Knox County is set for trial on
November 12, 2018, before Chancellor Weaver. The Chancellor requested a reasonable effort to settle
outside of court. An issue that has been brought up with the case, is whether the judgment would be
effective as to pérties that are not before the court. Mr. Burks stated that the Chancellor has heard argument
on this issue and would rule tomorrow morning at 9:30am. The Chancellor wanted to give the parties an
opportunity to engage in settlement negotiations prior to his ruling. Mr. Owings stated that the Chancellor
would also rule on the Board’s motion to dismiss filed a couple of months ago.

Commissioner Anders motioned to approve the settlement and Ms. Foster seconded the motion.

Commissioner Schoonmaker asked Mr. Cross if the settlement would have any actuarial impact on
Knox County. Mr. Cross replied that the current actuarial computations already include the 43 days and
computations would remain the same under the proposed settlement agreement. Commissioner
Schoonmaker made a substitute motion to defer action and for the Chairman to call a special meeting after
the settlement proposal is reviewed by both sides. Commissioner Jay seconded the motion.

Mr. Raiden stated his opinion that the Board should follow the advice of counsel on legal matters
such as these.

Commissioner Jay stated his concern that the settlement proposal might be signed by the Mayor
and filed with the court without the Law Director's involvement. In response, Mr. Webb stated that the
authority to sign is a legal issue rather than a Board issue. Mr. Burks stated that he and Mr. Owings are
asking for authority to make an offer and at this point are not making a determination on who can or cannot
accept it. Without the authority to make the offer, that topic cannot be reached. Mr. Owings confirmed that
it was not the intent of the Board’s legal counsel to exclude opposing counsel.

Commissioner Schoonmaker asked why the draft amendment included in the settlement proposal
had an effective date of January 1, 2018. Mr. Owings stated that the Board is permitted to retroactively
amend the plan in this case since it has not exceeded the 43-day maximum in 2018, so the amendment is




consistent with the administration and operation of UOPP for the 2018 calendar year. In response to
Commissioner Schoonmaker’s question, Ms. Bennett confirmed that no retiree has received more than 43
days of vacation cash out in 2018,

There was then a rolicall vote for the substitute motion made by Commissioner Schoonmaker. The

vote was as follows:

Chairman Proxy Caldwell: No Ms. Foster: No
Commissioner Anders: No Ms. Hemmelgarn: No
Commissioner Jay. Yes Mr. Raiden: Yes
Commissioner Nystrom: No Mr. Webb: No

Commissioner Schoonmaker: Yes

The motion failed by a vote of 3 to 6.

There was then a rolicall vote for the motion to approve the settlement proposal made by
Commissioner Anders. The vote was as followed:

Chairman Proxy Caldwell: Yes Ms. Foster: Yes
Commissioner Anders: Yes Ms. Hemmelgarn: Yes
Commissioner Jay: Yes Mr. Raiden: Yes
Commissioner Nystrom:; Yes Mr. Webb: Yes

Commissioner Schoonmaker: No

The motion to approve the settlement proposal was approved on an 8 to 1 vote.
IN RE: REPORT OF ACTUARY

Mr. Cross reported GASB calculation results for Defined Benefit and Defined Contribution plans.

For the Closed Defined Benefit Plan, the January 1, 2018 Actuarially Determined Contribution is
$3.2 million, the Funding Ratio — market value of assets as a percentage of present value of accumulated
benefits is 64.3%, the GASB net pension liability at June 30, 2018, is $28.4 million, and the pension expense
for measurement period ended June 30, 2018 is $3.5 million.

For the Teacher's Plan, the respective amounts are $475,000, 86.1%, $8.7 million, and $1.7 million.

For UOPP, $5.7 million, 98.07%, $40.1 million, and $8.0 million.

The Disability Plan is reported on a different GASB basis. The Annual Required Contribution is
$503,000 as of January 1, 2018, net OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2018 is $2.5 million, and the GASB
OPEB expense for measurement period ended June 30, 2018 is $3.9 million.




IN RE: APPROVAL OF PAYMENT — STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT
The following statement of accounts for professional services was presented for consideration and

approval of payment, in accordance with agreements, audits and recommended for payment by Ms.

Bennett:
FEE SCHEDULE
Tnvolces for SEPT 2010 Flscal 19 YTD Approved SEPT Involce Flscal 19 YTD Approved
Logst Involces ara approved for tho previous Months Exponao) Invaices 08/31/2018 For Approval {nvolces 09/30/2018
BENXL
Involee # $0.00
TOTAL BENXL ] §0.00 $0.00 $0,00
KENNERLY, MONTGOMERY & FINLEY, P.C,
Involce # $0,00
TOTAL KENNERLY, MONTGOMERY & FINLEY, P.C, $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Owlings, Wilson & Coleman
involce # 9912M - 08/31/2018 $944.12 |.
Involce # 9817M - 00/31/2018 $49,068.89
Involce # 9924M - 00/31/2018 $2,717.97
tavolce ## 9927M - 08/31/2018 $2,032,61
¢ TOTAL OWINGS, WILSON & COLEMAN $69,424,80 $66,663.60 $126,078,28
JUSTICE, NOEL & BURKS
lnwolce # $18,266.00
TOTAL JUSTIOE, NOEL & BURKS $18,266.00 $18,256.00 $36,512.00
LEWIS THOMASON (Mary Ann Stackhouse)
Involce # 336137 $3,326,00
TOTAL LEWIS THOMASON $16,612.50 $3,326.00 $18,837.650
US| CONSULTING GROUP
Involce # 80024215 $35,822,00
TOTAL USI CONSULTING GROUP $01,444,22 $35,822.00 $117,266,22
Involces for SEPT 2018 $169,124.82 $109,731.69 $297,694,01
*1* Ratalner not Included In approved billings for the Board Fiscal 19 YTD
Owings, Wilson & Coleman Relalner $4,000 per month $12,000
Kennerly Monlgomery Relainer $12,000 per month $36,000
Courl Reporter for Hearings $160,00 $160,00
Fees Recelved from QDRO Particlpants $600 (DC Fea) $0
$2,000 (DB Feo) $0

*QDRO fao Is Pald to Retirement Office which off sels the legal fee

After review of the statement of accounts and invoices, a motion was made by Commissioner
Nystrom that the Board authorize the payment indicated above to be paid from the designated Retirement
Plans. The motion was seconded by Ms. Hemmelgarn and unanimously approved.




ADJOURNMENT

Chairman Caldwell asked if there was a motion to adjourn. Commissioner Thomas made a motion

to adjourn, which was seconded by Commissioner Brantley, and the meeting was adjourned.

MAYOR TiM BURCHETT, CHAIRMAN
BY PROXY, CHRIS CALDWELL

MS. il%ACY FOSTER, SECRETARY

Attachments:

Amended Fee Schedule

Proxy Appointee Memorandum

Oath of New Board Members

Transcript of September 7, 2018 Proceeding
Facts of Case

Motion to Intervene

USI Investment Breakout

GASB Presentation
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FEE SCHEDULE

Involces for SEPT 2018 Flscal 19 YTD Approved SEPT Invoice Fiscal 19 YTD Approved
(Laga! Involces are approved for the previous Months Expense) Invoices 08/31/2018 For Approval Involces 09/30/2018
BENXL
Invaice # $0.00
TOTAL BENXL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
KENNERLY, MONTGOMERY & FINLEY, P.C.
Invoice # $0.00
*TOTAL KENNERLY, MONTGOMERY & FINLEY, P.C, $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Owings, Wilson & Coleman
Invoice # 8912M - 08/31/2018 $944,12 |.
Involce # 9917M - 08/31/2018 $49,068,99
Involce # 9924M - 08/31/2018 $2,717.97
Involce # 9927M - 08/31/2018 $2,032.61
**+ TOTAL OWINGS, WILSON & COLEMAN $69,424.60 $55,663.69 $125,078.29
JUSTICE, NOEL & BURKS
Invoice # $18,266,00
TOTAL JUSTICE, NOEL & BURKS $18,266.00 $18,266.00 $36,512.00
LEWIS THOMASON (Mary Ann Stackhouse)
Invoice # 336137 $3,326.00
TOTAL LEWIS THOMASON $15,612.60 $3,325,00 $18,837.50
USI CONSULTING GROUP
Involce # 90024215 $35,822.00
TOTAL US| CONSULTING GROUP $81,444.22 $35,822,00 $117,266.22
Involces for SEPT 2018 $169,124.82 $109,731.69 $297,694.01
*++ Retainer not Included In approved billings for the Board Fiscal 19 YTD
Owlngs, Wilson & Coleman Retalner $4,000 per month $12,000
Kennerly Montgomery Retalner $12,000 per month $36,000
Court Reporter for Hearlngs $160.00 $150.00
Fees Recelved from QDRO Particlpants $500 (DC Fee) $0
$2,000 (DB Fes) $0

*QDRO fee Is Pald to Retirement Office which off sels the legal fee




JUSTICE, NOEL & BURKS
AN ASSOCIATION OF '
ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW
1816 W. CLINCH AVENUE
KNOXVILLE, TENNESSEE 37916

DAVID D, NOEL
CHARLES C. BURKS, JR.*
PATRICK G, NOEL

TELEPHONE: (865) 522-4964
FACSIMILE: (865) 546-8525
EMAILL: jnbattys@jnblawfirm.com

STNL SUD, CT, Rule 31 Certified Mediator

ROBERT T. MANN
(1910-1990)

W, CONWAY GARLINGTON
(1923 -2008)

. JAMES W. JUSTICE
OF COUNSEL

Knox Co. Pension Board
400 Main Street
City-County Building, Room 371

Knoxville, Tennessee 37902 Invoice #4 Trimmed:

DATE DESCRIPTION
Beginning — June 25, 2018

a.) Attorney-Client Privileged and Confidential Information;
b.) Legal Research

July 2018

a.) Attorney-Client Privileged and Confidential Information;
b.) Legal Research

Through — August 22, 2018

a.) Attorney-Client Privileged and Confidential Information;
b.) Legal Research

Expenses paid by Justice, Noel & Burks
Knox County Court Clerk (photocopies)

Hourly Rate
$300.00

Attorney
Charles C. Burks Jr.

Total Current Work

Balance Due Curvently

Total Hours

August 22,2018

File #: 200-713

HOURS -

0.6 Hourxs

50.2 Hours

10.0 Hours
$16.00

Total
$18,240.00
$18,256.00

$18,256.00




OFFICE OF COUNTY MAYOR GLENN JACOBS

400 Main Street, Suite 615, Knoxville, TN 37902

MEMORANDUM

To:  Kim Bennett, Executive Director and Knox County Retirement and
Pension Board Members

From: Mayor Glenn Jacobs

RE:  Appointment of Proxy

Date: September 24, 2018

As a County Elected Official with a designated seat on the Knox County Retirement and
Pension Board I wish to appoint Chris Caldwell to represent me on the Retirement and

Pension Board until further notice,

county.mayor@knoxcounty.org * phone 865.215.2005 - fax 865.215.2002




OATH

Knox County Retirement and Pension Board

STATE OF TENNESSEE

COUNTY OF KNOX

|, Chris Caldwell, Proxy for Mayor Glenn Jacobs, having been selected to the
Knox County Retirement and Pension Board, do solemnly swear that | will perform with
fidelity the duties of a Board Member without prejudice, partiality or favor to the best of
my skill and ability, so help me God.

Witness my hand this 24t day of September 2018

A2z

Chris Caldwell, Pro&y for Mayor Glenn Jacobs

Subscribed and sworn to before me
This 24 day of September 2018

egal Coynsel o
no unty Retirement and

Pension Board



OATH

Knox County Retirement and Pension Board

STATE OF TENNESSEE

COUNTY OF KNOX

|, Brad Anders, having been selected to the Knox County Retirement and
Pension Board, do solemnly swear that | will perform with fidelity the duties of a Board
Member without prejudice, partiality or favor to the best of my skill and ability, so help
me God.

Witness my hand this 24" day of September 2018

Bl Al

Brad Anders

Subscribed and sworn to before me
This 24 day of September 2018

Legal Co? 24Amrgcle
Kno ty Retirement and Pehsion Board




OATH

Knox County Retirement and Pension Board

STATE OF TENNESSEE

COUNTY OF KNOX

I, Larsen Jay, having been selected to the Knox County Retirement and Pension
Board, do solemnly swear that | will perform with fidelity the duties of a Board Member
without prejudice, partiality or favor to the best of my skill and ability, so help me God.

Witness my hand this 24" day of September 2018

( W/\)ﬁ/

Larsen JaW\J (

Subscribed and sworn to before me
This 24" day of September 2018

ion Board

ggal Comf — o SAareany 4
K ty Retirement and Papk




OATH

Knox County Retirement and Pension Board

STATE OF TENNESSEE

COUNTY OF KNOX

|, Mayor Glenn Jacobs, having been selected to the Knox County Retirement and
Pension Board, do solemnly swear that | will perform with fidelity the duties of a Board
Member without prejudice, partiality or favor to the best of my skill and ability, so help
me God.

Witness my hand this 24! day of September 2018

TRV A

Mayor Glenn x‘?cobs

Subscribed and sworn to before me
This 24t day of September 2018




In The Matter Of:
KNOX COUNTY, TENNESSEE vs.

KNOX COUNTY RETIREMENT AND PENSION BOARD, et al

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
September 7, 2018

Gibson Court Reporting
606 West Main Street
Suite 350
Knoxville, TN 37902

4 REPORTING

Min-U-Script®




TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

September 7, 2018

IN THE CHANCERY COURT FOR KNOX COUNTY, TENNESSEE

Plaintiff,

vs.

KNOX COUNTY RETIREMENT AND PENSION
BOARD, et al.,

Defendants.

APPEARANCES :

KNOX COUNTY, TENNESSEE,

NO. 195629-1
194873-1
195683-1

e’ e e N e S e N S S

FOR THE PLAINTIFF:

MELISSA B. CARRASCO

JONATHAN D. REED

ANDREW B. TUCKER

Attorneys at Law

Egerton, McAfee, Armistead & Davis

. 900 South Gay Street, 1l4th Floor

Knoxville, Tennessee 37902

FOR THE DEFENDANT KNOX COUNTY RETIREMENT
AND PENSION BOARD:

CHARLES C. BURKS, JR.
Attorney at Law

Justice, Noel & Burks

1816 West Clinch Avenue
Knoxville, Tennessee 37916

JOHN E. OWINGS, ESQ.

SARAH D. JARRARD, ESQ.
Attorneys at Law

Owings, Wilson & Coleman

900 South Gay Street, Suite 800
Knoxville, Tennessee 37902

Gibson Court Reporting
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APPEARANCES CONTINUED:

FOR THE DEFENDANTS LISA BIGWOOD, STELLA
CATLETT, ROBERT CALDWELL, GREGORY CRAIG,
GREGORY GASS, JAMES PRITCHARD, AND

J. DAVID YOKLEY:

AT, HOLIFIELD, ESO.

KELLYY MANN, ESQ.

Attorneys at Law

Holifield, Janich, Rachal, & Ferrera
11907 Kingston Pike, Suite 201
Knoxville, Tennessee 37934

FOR THE DEFENDANT RENEE RICKER,
BENEFICIARY OF DENNIS RICKER:

STEPHEN K. GARRETT

Attorney at Law

Law Office of Stephen K. Garrett
7838 Barker Road

Corryton, Tennessee 37721

FOR THE DEFENDANTS:

MARY ANN STACKHOUSE

Attorney at Law

Lewis Thomason

620 Market Street, Fifth Flooxr
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from Knox County, the amount doesn't really
matter. The question is, is it even proper under
the charter? That's the question to be answered
in one of these cases.

THE COURT: Okay. Yéu've told me all
along and I've heard a lot about what's wrong with
what the pension board's done, but from their
gide, that 2012 the charter amendment --

MS. CARRASCO: Yes.

THE COURT: -- it approved the 2007 plan
as amended; correct?

MS. CARRASCO: It approved the 2007 plan.
I don't believe it saild as amended.

THE COURT: Well, how could it not be as
amended? You mean the voters approved the 2007
plan as unamended? That wouldn't make any sense;
would 1it?

MS. CARRASCO: That's én interesting
thing to raise, because the 2009 plan and the
amenaments'have some very serious probléms with it
in terﬁs of who approved it --

THE COURT: What is in the 2012 charter;
is it the 2007 plan?

MS. CARRASCO: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. And if it got amended,
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what was the plan when the charter provision was
pagsed? The amendment to thé charter, it was that
plan as amended; wasn't it?

MS. CARRASCO: If that amendment was
proper.

_THE COURT: If the charter amendment was
proper and it amended the 2007 plan, it overrides
everything; doesn't it?

MS. CARRASCO: I think only if the 2012
charter amendment says it's adopting the 2007 --

THE COURT: So your position there is the
people when they voted in the 2012 charter
amendment, they didn't mean the plan as amended up
to that point, what was before them, they meant
the way it was back when originally adopted in
20077 Is there anything to suggest that?

MS. CARRASCO: If the 2009 amendment was
not properly passed and was not properly
approved --

THE COURT: Forget about 1t. You've got
the 2012 charter hand coming out there and
grabbing ahold of something, and you're gaying it
didn't grab ahold of the 2007 plan with the
amenaments. It left amendments behind.

Is there anything to indicate any intent
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like that?

MS. CARRASCO: Do you care if I check a
minute to see the language of the -- because I
believe it's still in our charter today. And if
it says as amended, then I will come up here and
apologize.

THE COURT: Well, if it doesn't say as
amended, what does that mean? Is that what you
mean, that it would only be the original one?

MS. CARRASCO: This is why we carry large
books.

Here's what it says in section 705(b),
"The 2007 officers plan adopted effective July 1,
2007, shall be closed to enrollment of officers
hired on or after January 1, 2014.

The 2007 officers plan shall remain in
effect for any officers who participated in it

prior to January 1, 2014, soO long as such officer

remaing continuously employed as an officer.

A participant in the 2007 officers plan
who is not vested on January 1, 2014, but who
thereafter completes five years of service under
that plan shall be entitled to benefits under the
2007 officers plan." |

THE COURT: Okay. How can anybody then

Gibson Court Reporting




N

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

75

participate in the 2007 officers plan in 2014
except as amended? That's not possible; is it?

MS. CARRASCO: Well, T will say that I
don't think the charter says as amended --

THE COURT: It doesn't, but how can
anybody -- it doesn't use the words "as amended . "

MS. CARRASCO: Correct.

THE COURT: I don't know that everyone
anticipates how we're going to pick on all this
stuff later on, and I'm not stating you're picking
on it any more than I am or anybody elsg is, but
how in the world -- there wasn't anybody
participating in the 2007 plan as unamended in
2014; was there?

MS. CARRASCO: I think you're correct.

Ag far as I know, in 2012 --

THE COURT: So what do I do with this
charter amendment? Doesn't it bring it.forward
or, "Hey,ithat's what I got now. That's the
people did that." 4

MS. CARRASCO: Well, the absolute most it
can do, if it does, which we do not concede
becauge I think there's evidence the 2009
amendment was not proper, but the most it could

do -~

Gibson Court Reporting




7N

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

76

THE COURT: Forget about it. I mean,
just do the 2012 charter.

MS. CARRASCO: Again, based on -- since
we're all pretending today.

THE COURT: Yes.

MS. CARRASCO: The most the 2012
amendment of the charter amendment -- and I should

clarify. I apologize. The most the 2012 charter

.amendment could do would be incorporate the 2007

plan with the 2009 amendment. That's the most it
could do. Any of the additional amendments after
2012 would not be covered by this provision of the
charter.

THE COURT: All right. By 2012, was
accrued vacation leave being included?

MS. CARRASCO: The only place it appears

in the 2009 plan is under their section where it

defineg -- now, they've inserted a section éélled
Séction 415: And if you would like, I gan‘bring
it out and we can go through that section, but
that's whére it appears in that little bitty
gection that says that it's included as part of
this.Section 415 compensgation.

The interesting part about the pension

board's argument though is that their argument
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gseemsg to be that we included it because of a
proposed regulation. It was just proposed at the
time, but, hey, we went ahead and put it in there.
And then as it turns out, if you read through
their argument, it turns out that regulation just
sald it was now optional. It wasn't even
mandatory.

THE COURT: But it was put in there --

MS. CARRASCO: Only in that little
section, but what I'm saying is, and this is part
of the --

THE COURT:' Well, if they just put it in
that one little section and it mean, "Well, we'll
just put in this cupboard over here, it won't have
anything to do with the rest of kitchen," they
didn't mean that; did they? That would not be
rational; would it?

MS. CARRASCQ:l'But what they are saying.
is thaﬁ'they chose to take an action that was
optional, it was not mandatory, without getting
proper approval from the commission that would
have the effect of increasing the unfunded
liability of the county.

THE COURT: But after that --

MS. CARRASCO: And that's part of where
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we take issue.

THE COURT: Do you have the 2012 charter
amendment?

MS. CARRASCO: That is correct.

THE COURT: Okay. So that's going to
trump the commission or anybody else; isn't it?

MS. CARRASCO: Assuming that the 2009
plan is proper, which again I think that's where
the proof at trial will be.

THE COURT: Now, wait, you can trump the
2012 charter amendment by saying the 2009 plan
amendment was not correct?

MS. CARRASCO: If it wasn't properly
done, if it wasn't correct, then how could the

voters of Knox County have incorporated something

~that was incorrect?

THE COURT: Whatever it was is what they
incorporated. The voters didn't think, "Well, I'm
going to go thréugh this and see which part I
think is correct or nét."' |

MS. CARRASCO: I guarantee no one did
that.

THE COURT: If it existed, if that
charter existed when you had the charter

amendment, there's a problem there; isn't there?
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There's at least some ground for argument; right?

MS. CARRASCO: I certainly will be glad
to hear their argument on that issue. I do think
there is significant counter arguments, but again
T think that is where the proof at trial --

THE COURT: Well, I mean the main
argument for me is what the charter says about
salary. It doesn't say accrued vacation pay, .it
says salary, 24 months; right? The highest --

MS. CARRASCO: Correct.

THE COURT: -~ 24 wmonths? And I'm told
to look up to the charter; right? That's where
the guidance comes from, the main guidance; right?
Forget about the part about not notifying the
commission and getting their consent and all that.
T just need to look at the charter, but what do I
do with the 2012 charter?

MS. CARRASCO: I think what you do with

it is you go back to Faust, and Faust gays that

you can't construe -- the pension board can't
construe the ordinance different from what the
ordinance actually says.

THE COURT: So if the 2012 charter
amendment adopts the plan, the 2007 plan as it

existed in 2012, then isn't that what you would be
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asking me then, do what would be wrong under
Faust; wouldn't it?

MS. CARRASCO: No, because --

THE COURT: Because what was valid would
be determined by the 'l2 amendment.

MS. CARRASCO: I think what we'll be
agking you to do is construe the 2007 UOPP and its
reference to compensation. And if you ultimately
decide the 2009 amendment was proper or even
ratified in 2012, construe that consistent with
the ordinance which says the pension benefits are
based on salary, not compensation.

I would also ask you to look at other
parts of the 2007 and the 2009 amendment which
gspecifically say that post severance compensation,
that compensation -- excuse me, I'm using a

defined term, and I won't do that because they

will yell at me, but it says that compensation

after termination shall not be included.
So what I will be asking you to do is
look at the language of the ordinance as it was

passed in 2007, look at what was in the charter in

2007, look at what was in the UOPP in 2007.

THE COURT: But if that 2007 plan as

amended became part of the charter in 2012 and it

~ Gibson Court Reporting
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has a provision in there that says it's to be
included, what am I to do, write that out of the
chartexr?

MS. CARRASCO: No, what I will ask you to
do is construe it consistent with the ordinance as
it's passed.

THE COURT: It says it's to be included.
If it says it's to be included, how do I not
include it and say, "Well, that's consistent"?

MS. CARRASCO: Well, it doesn't, in fact,
say it should be included. Again, there will be

plenty of argument on that point, but what I will

gay is ~--
THE COURT: Does it say it's optional?
MS. CARRASCO: What it says is, it
actually says -- it defines compensation and

defines post severance compensation as part of

compénSétion, then~yéu got this other whole

section of definitions which talk about 415

compensation;

- That's a whole other separate issue and
that's where accrued leave cash-out actually
appears, and then you've got another provigion
which says that compensation payments made after

termination shall not be included.

Gibson Court Reporting




L FACTS

A. Creation and Authority of the Knox County Retirement and Pension Board.

The Defendant was established by the Tennessee General Assembly by 1967 Tenn. Priv.
Acts, Ch. 246 and amended by 1969 Tenn. Priv, Acts, Ch. 26; 1975 Tenn. Priv. Acts, Ch. 91; and
1980 Tenn. Priv. Act, Ch. 282 (collectively referred to as the “Act”). 1967 Tenn. Priv. Acts, Ch,
246 1969 Tenn. Priv. Acts, Ch, 26; 1975 Tenn. Priv. Acts, Ch. 91; and 1980 Tenn. Priv. Act, Ch.
282 are attached to Knox County Retirement and Pension Board’s response in Opposition to
Plaintiff’s Application for Temporary Injunction (“Response to Temporary Injunction”) as
collective Exhibit A and are specifically incorporated herein. Section 3 of the Act gives the
Defendant (at that time referred to as the Knox County Retirement and Pension Comnission)
the power to

to design and adopt and place into effect a financially sound retirement system.
Be it further enacted that the Knox County Retirement and Pension Commission
shall be empowered to employ the services of legal counsel, investment consultants,
actuary consultants, and the setvices of others which, at the sole discretion of the
[Knox County Retirement and Pension] Commission, may be necessary to maintain
a soundly designed administrated and financed pension system.

The [Knox County Retirement and Pension] Commission shall also have complete
control over the administration of the system. The [Knox County Retirement and
Pension] Commission shall be empowered to define all terms and further
empowered to rule on all specifications necessary for the design of the plan such
as but not limited to: the purpose, the effective date of the system, the eligibility
of employees as to membership in the retirement system, administration,
contributions of the employees and Knox County on a matching fund basis, prior
service, back service, and method of payment of same; military service, refund of
members' contributions, service retirement, optional retirement, compulsory
retirement, involuntary retirement, service retirement allowance, optional
allowance on service retirement, ordinary disability retirement, ordinary disability
retirement allowance, benefit for disability in line of duty, benefit for death in the
line of duty, benefit for death not in the line of duty, recovery from and
reexamination for disability, indeterminate period of service, group insurance,
constitutionality, credited setvices, base earnings, excess earnings, average base
earnings, average excess earnings, normal retirement date, beneficiary contingent
annuitant, et al, The Retirement Commission is further empowered to perform all




Charter, §7.04(D). However, the Charter restricts the Defendants powers by stating that the
Defendant “shall not adopt a policy, plan, plan amendment or administrative action unless it is
actuarially sound and is actuarially funded at the time of adoption.” Charter, § 7.02(C).
The Charter further restricts Defendant by stating that Defendant:
shall not have the power or authority to adopt or approve any plan or plan
amendment, or take any other action, which thereby would increase the funding or
financial obligations of the County either at the time of the action or in the future
without notification to and express consent and funding from the Commission by
resolution. The intent of this provision is to restrict the power of the Retirement
Boatd so that all plans, benefits, annuities or pensions are actuarially sound and
actuarially funded from the date of their creation.
Charter, §7.04(E).
B. Uniformed Officers Pension Plan
Tn 2006, the process to adopt a defined benefit plan to cover the Knox County Sheriff’s
Department’s uniformed officers began. At that time, uniformed officers were included either in
the Knox County Asset Accumulation Plan, a defined contribution plan (aka “DC”) or the Closed
Defined Benefit Plan (aka “DB”). The Asset Accumulation Plan at that time existed as Article IV
of the Restatement of the Knox County Employee Benefit System and the Closed Defined Benefit
Plan existed as Article III. The 2002 Restatement of the Knox County Employee Benefit System
and all amendments though 2006 (“2006 Retirement Plan”) are attached collectively to the
Response to Temporary Injunction as Exhibit C and specifically incorporated by reference herein.
On September 21, 2006, the Knox County Commission approved ordinance 0-06-4-101
allowing the adoption of a uniformed officets pension plan (“UOPP”) to be submitted to the voters
of Knox County by referendum. Knox County Ordinance 0-06-4-101 (“0-06-4-101”) is attached

to the Response to Temporary Injunction as Exhibit D and specifically incorporated by reference

herein. 0-06-4-101 directed the Defendant to “establish, maintain and administer as a plan of the




§7.04(E), submitted to the Knox County Commission for approval, The Knox County Commission
approved the 2007 UOPP in Resolution R-07-2-902.

The following provisions were set forth in the 2007 UOPP:

5.1 Normal Retirement Benefit

A Participant who retires on or after the Normal Retirement Date shall be entitled
to a Normal Retirement Benefit, commencing immediately and payable monthly
for life. The Normal Retirement Benefit equals 2.5% of such Participant's Average
Monihly Compensation multiplied by the Participant's Service (up to a maximum
of thirty (30) years). A Participant’s Normal Retirement Benefit shall not be less
than the minimum benefit provided in Section 5.7.

2007 UOPP, § 5.1 (emphasis added).

1.7 “Average Monthly Compensation” means the monthly Compensation of a
Participant as an Officer averaged over any two (2) 12-month periods, whether or
not consecutive but which do not overlap, from date of employment, including
periods prior to the Effective Date of the Plan, which produce the highest monthly
average. If a Participant has less than 24 months of Service as an Officer, Average
Monthly Compensation will be based on the Participant's monthly Compensation
during the Participant's entire Service as an Officer, Compensation subsequent to
termination of participation pursuant to Section 3.4 shall not be recognized.

2007 UOPP, § 1.7 (emphasis added).
1.14 “Compensation” with respect to any Participant means such Participant's
total salary as an Officer, as determined and paid by the Employer, which is
currently includible in gross income, which is attributable to the period of his or her
participation in the Plan for each Plan Year.
For purposes of this Section, the determination of Compensation shall be made by:
(a) excluding overtime,
(b) including bonuses.
(¢) including longevity pay.
(d) including amounts which are contributed by the Employer pursuant to a salary
reduction agreement and which are not includible in the gross income of the
Participant under Code §§125, 132(£)(4), 402(e)(3), 402(h)(1)(B), 403(b) or 457(b), -

and Employee Contributions described in Code §414(h)(2) that are treated as
Employer contributions. For this purpose, effective January 1, 1998, amounts not




C. 2009 Plan Amendment

In order to comply with the Charter requirement that the UOPP be a qualified plan, the
Defendant amended the 2007 UOPP after public notice on two readings in October and November
2008. The amendment and restatement (“2009 Restatement”) approved by the Defendant on
November 17, 2008, and effective January 1, 2009, stated that its purpose was “to amend and
restate the Plan to comply with certain IRS requirements for a qualified plan.” The 2009
Restatement did not require approval by the Knox County Commission as it did not “increase the
funding or financial obligations of the County.” Charter, §7.04(E).

The UOPP, like all qualified defined benefit plans, is subject to the requirements of Internal
Revenue Code (“Code”) § 415(b), which imposes a limit on the maximum defined benefit that a
participant can accrue. Under the Code and applicable regulations, each Participant's accrued
benefit is compared to a maximum allowed benefit. If the Participant's accrued benefit under the
Plan formula would be more than the maximum benefit permitted by Code § 415(b), the Plan
benefit is reduced to the § 415(b) maximum.

To define the applicable maximum Code § 415(b) benefit, the Code and regulations specify
elements that go into defining a Plan's accrued defined benefit, including retirement age, setvice,
and compensation, A qualified plan is required to incorporate into its written document required §
415(b) provisions, reflecting those § 415 defined terms.

In 2005, the IRS proposed amendments to the 415 regulations (“Proposed 415
Regulations®). The Proposed 415 Regulations referred to “post-severance compensation” for the
first time and provided specific rules regarding when amounts received following severance from
employment were considered compensation for purposes of § 415. Pursuant to those Proposed

415 Regulations, payments for accrued bona fide sick, vacation, or other leave paid within 2 %




including to specifically state that vacation leave cashout is included in Post-Severance
Compensation, until January 1, 2009. Instead, the Pension Board was permitted to continue to
operate the UOPP as a fully qualified plan consistent with the Proposed 415 Regulations and to
amend the Plan document by the deadline, retroactive to July 1, 2007. Accordingly, the 2009
Restatement contains the following language:

6.6 Final §415 Regulations

(a) This Section is effective as of July 1, 2007, shall apply to Limitation Years
and Plan Years beginning on and after July 1, 2007, and supersedes the
provisions of the Plan to the extent inconsistent with this Section.

(b) The Section 1.29 definition of 415 Compensation shall be modified by: (1)
including

payments for unused sick, vacation or other leave pursuant to Section 6.6(c)(2); (2)
including payments from nonqualified unfunded deferred compensation plans
pursuant to Section 6.6( ¢ )(2); (3) including salary continuation payments for
participants on military setvice pursuant to Section 6.6 (c)(3); and (4) including
salary continuation payments for Disabled Participants pursuant to Section
6.6(c)(4). The Section 1.14 definition of Compensation shall be modified to
provide for the same adjustments that are made to 415 Compensation pursuant
to this Section, except as provided in Section 6.6(c)(1)(4) and except the ferm
"Limitation Year" shall be replaced with the term "Plan Year" and the term "415
Compensation" shall be replaced with the term "Compensation."”

(c) 415 Compensation shall be adjusted for the following types of Compensation
paid after Participant's severance from employment with the Employer maintaining
the Plan (or any other entity that is treated as the Employer pursuant to Code
§414(b), (¢), (m) ot (0)). However, amounts described in Sections 6.6(c)(1) and (2)
below may only be included in 415 Compensation to the extent such amounts are
paid by the later of2-1/2 months after severance from employment or by the end of
the Limitation Year that includes the date of such severance from employment. Any
other payment of Compensation paid after severance of employment that is not
described in the following types of Compensation is not considered 415
Compensation within the meaning of Code §415(c)(3), even if payment is made
within the time period specified above,

(1) 415 Compensation shall include regular pay after severance of
employment if:

(A) The payment is regular Compensation for services during the
Participant's regular working hours, or Compensation for services




Amendment 1 closed enrollment into the UOPP to new officers, but was left open to any officers
who participated in it prior to January 1, 2014, As a result of the recommendation of the Knox
County Charter Review Committee, and approval of the Law Director, Proposed Amendment 1
was placed on the ballot for approval by the voters of Knox County. Proposed Amendment 1 and
the 2012 Ballot are attached to the Response to Temporary Injunction collectively as Exhibit F
and specifically incorporated by reference herein.

Proposed Amendment 1 states "‘[t]he 2007 Officers Plan shall remain in effect for any
officers who participated in it priot to January 1, 2014 so long as such officer remains continuously
employed as an officer.” Proposed Amendment 1, §7.05(B). The 2012 Ballot stated “[sThall Asticle
VII of the Knox County Chatter entitled ‘Pensions’, be amended to: (1) close the present
Uniformed Officers Pension Plan to new patticipants, effective December 31,2013....” Proposed
Amendment 1 passed and became the new Section 7.05 of the Charter (“2012 Charter
Amendment”). By approving Proposed Amendment 1, the voters of Knox County adopted and
ratified the language of the 2007 UOPP. This fact is acknowledged in Plaintiff’s Brief in Support
of Plaintiff’s Application for Temporary Injunction (“Plaintiff’s Brief”). See Plaintiff’s Brief, p. 7
(“By enacting the 2012 Charter Amendment, the Knox County Voters adopted and ratified the
2007 UOPP and reiterated that the Pension Boatrd could only amend the UOPP consistent with
Section 7.04E of the Charter.”). This ratification was not only of the original 2007 UOPP, which
included Post-Severance Compensation as part of the officer’s benefit calculation, but also any
amendments to the 2007 UOPP propetly passed prior to the 2012 Charter Amendment, including

the 2009 Restatement.




F. Yearly Commission Approval

Each year, Defendant submits to the actuary, USI Consulting Group (“Actuary™), census
data, which includes payroll information, compensation as defined in the UOPP plan (including
leave cashout), and employer and employee contributions to the plan, Defendant then receives
fiom the Actuary the annual valuation of each pension plan. Once receiving the annual valvation,
Defendant votes to accept each year’s annual valuation. As part of the annual budget, Defendant
submits to Knox County Finance Department all monies needed to fund all retirement plans
maintained by Defendant. The funding requirements, including the funding requirements for the
2007 UOPP plan as amended and the 2014 UOPP plan, are included in the budget submitted to the
Knox County Commission for approval each year.

Each year the Knox County Commission has reviewed and approved the budget presented
by the Defendant, effectively ratifying the finding requirements of the UOPP plan each and every
year. This approval covers any increase or decrease that a plan may have had in finding

requirements for each and every year since the institution of the UOPP.
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September 21, 2018

VIA HAND DELIVERY and VIA EMAIL

Kim Bennett, Executive Director

Knox County Retirement and Pension Board
City-County Building Room 371

400 Main Street

Knoxville, TN 37902

RE: Knox County’s Motion to Intervene and Objections to items 8 and 12 of the
Agenda for the Board’s September 24, 2018 Meeting

Dear Ms. Bennett;

Please find enclosed the captioned Motion on behalf of Knox County. We ask that this
Motion be addressed by the Board before making any determinations regarding: (1) the
Applications of James R. Jones and Deanna H. Williams for UOPP benefits as noted on Item 8
of the Agenda for the Board's September 24, 2018 meeting and any other UOPP applicants that
are added to the Agenda for the Board's September 24, 2018 meeting, and (2) the Settlement
Proposal of the Knox Gounty Retirement and Pension Board Regarding Lawsuits Filed on
Behalf of Knox County, Tennessee referenced in ltem 12 of the Agenda for the Board’s
September 24, 2018 meeting and as included in the Board's packet for the September 24, 2018
meeting. | request the opportunity to be heard on this Motion at the September 24th Board
meeting.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.

With kind regards. ' ‘

Sincerely yours,

Keith H. Burroughs
KHB ‘

Enclosure: As stated above

1498930v1
900 South Gay Street, 14" Floor, Riverview Tower, Knoxville, TN 37902
P.O. Box 2047, Knoxville, TN 379012047 / Tel: (865) 546-0500 / Fax: (865) 525-5293 / www.emlaw.com




KNOX COUNTY’S MOTION TO INTERVENE AND
OBJECTIONS TO ITEMS 8 AND 12 OF THE AGENDA
FOR THE BOARD’S SEPTEMBER 24, 2018 MEETING
Comes now Knox County, Tennessee, by and through the undersigned counsel,

and moves to intervene and objects: (1) to the approval by the Knox County Retirement
and Pension Board (“Board") of the applications of James R. Jones and Deanna H.
Williams (the “Participants”) for the Uniformed Officers Pension Plan (“UOPP”)
retirement benefits on Item 8 of the Agenda for the Board’s September 24, 2018
meeting, and (2) to the Settlement Proposal of the Knox County Retirement and
Pension Board Regarding Lawsuits Filed on Behalf of Knox County, Tennessee (the
“Settlement Proposal”) referenced in Item 12 of the Agenda for the Board’s September
24, 2018 meeting and as included in the Board's meeting packet for the September 24,
2018 meeting. Knox County objects to ltem 8 only to the extent that any accrued leave
cashout was or will be used in calculating the pension benefits to be awarded to the
Participants and any other participants in the UOPP added to any amended agenda for
the Board'’s Septémber 24, 2018 meeting. Knox County objects to ltem 12 because, as
further explained below, the Settlement Proposal’s terms include the recognition and
inclusion of accrued leave cashout in the retirement benefits calculations for participants

in the UOPP, thus violating the Knox County Charter.

Knox County moves to include by reference as part of the record on this matter:
this Motion and all prior Motions filed by Knox County regarding UOPP retirement
applications with attachments; the Board’s minutes from 2007 through the present; any
and all amendments to the UOPP; records identifying leave cashout included or to be

included in pension calculations for all retirees including the Patrticipants on the agenda

1498877v1
93022




for the September 24, 2018 meeting; and any additional items that may be deemed

relevant by the Board’s General Counsel.

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION
The staff of the Pension Board has been violating Section 1.10 of the UOPP,

Knox County Ordinance No. 0-06-4-101 and the November 7, 2006 Charter

Amendment by including leave cashout in calculating pension benefits.

In a July 29, 2016 Memo to Sheriff Jones, Board Director Kim Bennett states that
she reviewed the Sheriff's General Order with counsel for the Board “to detérmine the
treatment of vacation pay cash-out....” (hereinafter “UVCO”). She then announced a
policy change for retirees on or before January 1, 2017, who would receive more UVCO
than the General Order permitted, and another for persons retiring after January 1,
2017, who would not. These policy changes created a terrible precedent and exposed
the Board to arguments that its interpretation of the Plan was arbitrary and capricious.
These policy changes further exposed Knox County to additional financial obligations

without consideration and approval by Knox County.

According to Section 2.04 of the UOPP, the Board is the Administrator of the
UOPP with the discretion to construe the terms of the Plan and determine all questions
arising in connection with the administration, interpretation, and apblicaﬁon of the Plan, -
including all questions relating to the amount of any benefit to which any participant may
become entitled. Upon information and belief, the Board has never exercised its
exclusive authority to interpret the relevant provisions of the UOPP. The July 29, 2016
Memo to Sheriff Jones announcing a change in construction of the UOPP was
completely beyond Director Bennett's authority.

1498877v1
9302-2




In addition, Director Bennett's July 29, 2016 Memo also announced a policy
change and interpretation of the UOPP that directly increased the funding or financial
obligations of ths}e County. However, that action was never submitted to the Commission
for its express consent and funding by resolution as required by Section 7.04E of the
Charter. The Pénsion Board has a duty to obtain Knox County’s consent and funding
by resolution befbre taking any action that would increase the funding or financial

obligations of the County. Section 7.04E of the Knox County Charter specifically

provides:

The Knox County Retirement and Pension Board shall not
have the power or authority to adopt or approve any plan or
plan amendment, or take any other action, which thereby
would increase the funding or financial obligations of the
County either at the time of the action or in the future without
notification to and express consent and funding by resolution
from the commission.

The Pension Board's actions have increased and will increase the funding or
financial obligations of the County and have violated and will continue to violate Section
7.04E of the Knox County Charter unless they are taken with the express consent and
funding by resolution of the Knox CGounty Commission. No such resolution has ever

been considered by the Knox County Commission.

Analysis

On October 18, 2017, Director Bennett produced to Knox County a copy of the
original 2007 UOPP. Leave cashout is not included and Compensation is defined as
“salary.” Thus, leave cashout has never been permitted for inclusion in the calculation

of pension benefits by the Knox County Charter. The phrase “leave cashout” was not in

1498877v1
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the Plan that was adopted by the voters at the inception of the UOPP and as of the last

amendment of the Charter in 2012.

Section '1 .10 of the 2016 Restated UOPP and the 2017 Restated% UOPP provide
that post-severance compensation shall not be “recognized” in determiﬁing a
participant’s “Average Monthly Compensation.” This provision is consis%tent with the
Charter and must be given effect. Leave cashout cannot be included in the calculation |
of the Participants’ pension benefits. If the calculations for the retirement benefits on
the September 24, 2018 Board Agenda, Item 8, include any accrued leave cashout in
their pension calculations, they are ultra vires and unlawful, and Knox County objects.
Likewise, Knox County objects to the Settlement Proposal referenced in ltem 12 of the
Board's September 24, 2018 Agenda and enclosed in the Board's packet for the
September 24, 2018 meeting because its terms include the recognition and inclusion of
accrued leave cashout in the retirement benefits calculations of participants in the

UOPP, thus violating the terms of the Knox County Charter.
Respectfully submitted this 21st day of September, 2018.

EGERTON, MCAFEE, ARMISTEAD & DAVIS, P.C.

Keith H. Burroughs, Esq. (BPR 014255)
Jonathan D. Reed (BPR 012769)

Melissa B. Carrasco (BPR 029094)
Attorneys for Knox County and its Taxpayers
900 S. Gay Street, 14! Floor

Knoxville, Tennessee 37902

(865) 546-0500 (telephone)

(865) 525-5293 (fax)
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CLOSED DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

PIUNCIFAL RESULTS OF THE VALUATION

Below Js u tummory of tho princlpal resulls of thls yon's valualion ecomparcd with the provious
veluatlon, Amounts for each vadustion pedod reftect the astuarlsl cost methad, sstumptlons and glen

benefita In fTect ot that time,

CONTRIBUTION LIMITATIONS
Actuastally Detomined Contelbutl

Rypoctsd Bmployes Contdbutlon
SUPPORTING INFORMATION
Markel Valuo of Astels

Actuardal Yaluo of Assets

RAN Acorued Liabitity

Prosent Valuo of Accumuloted Bansfits

Punding Ratlo - Markel Valuo of Asssls a n Percentoge of
Prosent Velus of Accumuloted Benofity

Fundlog Rallo - Actuarind Value of Assels ny o Percontago of
Present Value of Accumutaled Benehils

Fundlng Ratlo Dlscount Rate
Number of Lives Included fn the Veluatlon
Present Volue of all Futuro Bena(its

CONSULTING SROUP
Asof Axof
Jonuary 1, 2017 January 1, 2018
§  2,956053 § 3,152,602
H 8350 § 79,265
$ 43428720 §  A4B44840
§ A48 § 43432774
§ 72808218 § 71,460,923
§ 70880450 § 69,6951
613% 643%
£32% 623%
100% 1.60%
5,257 4937
§ 73292136 §  12372,20
g5

CLOSED DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

CoNSULIRia M:)UF
Required Supplemeniary Informntlon
Changes In Net Penston Linblity (NPL) by Source
‘Tainl Renslon Plnn Mduclary Net Penslon
Liabllity Net Positlon Liabllity
) () (n) - (b)
Bolences 1t 06/30/2017% $71,463,732 $42,744,224 $28,719,508
Changes for the year:
Servico Cosl $135,568 $135,568
Interost $4,753,787 $4,755,787
Chenges of beaefit terms 50 ' $0
Differences between expected and actual oxpedenco $905,820 $905,820
Changes of assumptions $452,152 §452,152
Contribullons - emplayer $3,044,132 (53,044,132)
Contrlbutions - employce $90,004 (590,004)
Netinvestment Incomo $3,654,188 (83,654,188)
Pensfil payments, Including refunds of ¢o contdlbutt ($7,444,896) (87,444,896) $0
Adminstrallve oxpenso ($218,540) $218,540
Other changes ($29,330), $29,330
Net changes ($1,195,569) (5904,442) ($291,127),
Bualances al 05/30/2018¢ . §70268,163 _  $41,839,782 $28428,381

9/18/2018
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CLOSED P ;
L DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN co,-,@wmw
TOASD 61 Pensdon Esp Prlod Ended duns 30,9018
Teldd Prasten Tl Fiducisy et Pensdon Dilvertd Delerred
Uity NekPosttlon Lhibiilly Oxtfieves ol InTlousef Penslon
o] [L3] [ORO] Therrees Rarpyreex Espime
Bolaates (404302047 by iR {3N0)] $aidan $23,719,508 $4ka% $3400356
Chiager forlhsyean
BindsaCal 135,568 135568 133,468
Interett 47850 4735788 EREAIY)
Changerel benefitierms . . .
Differatoes behwees expeated 1ad dedsd expedenca 03310 $03,120 651650 - 2,110
Chage ofirmnpdear H$74 452,152 mars . mar
Convlbatkns «caployer 3,644,132 (34844132 .
Convfbthar enployes $0004 (20,004)
Prefested Brmlagt oa praston plen favestuarnts 2306251 (A3528%) [¢AN[311))
Difftrentds bebswea prefested and nitnat exmbags 317,036 {812.93¢) . (31Kl {osm
Dot F pywiete, fecludlag refonds sl e ccatifontiens [Z10R10] (1444.89¢6) . .
Adalalilafive axpats (218,340) 215,349 s
Othes ehasgey {19930} 1235 20230
Expentd for b galag dfered amoante (1,663} {i06219) M6
e tdanpey {1,195,369), 04:441] {251,123) {832410) {51410
Dolsasc) 110873072048 ST0.T63,163 S41339.782 sidum S350 $2419,526 $3388T15
Pentton Byptnie far Metsremtnt Perled Ended 0401002018 2,062513)
Chaaga In e et Penston LIttty qanaz
Leag Chaags [y Delimed Ouiflons €840
Yloe Chengyin Deferred Laftony {51,430}
Fux Bmploper Cantdbadons 304,10
Tatsd EERXITS
7
st}
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ty Board of i
Knox County Board of Education Plan
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‘ B OA R D O F E D U CAT' O N COMSUINIA GROUP
PRINCIPAL RESULTS OF THY. VALUANTION
Below fs & smmary of the princlp tesulls of ihis year's valosilon compared With e provious
valuatlon, Amounts for cach vatustien period reflsct 8 axtusrhd cot methed, wxsunipilons and plsn
beaeMs Jaeftect stihal thnwe,
. Atvof Avof
Janvary 1, 3017 Juay 1,201
CONTRID LIMITATIO
Actnarhlly D¢tennlaed Contributlon H 551,669 S 475204
Bxpeeted Emplajve Contributlon $ [ 0
[j1dve) A INFORMATLO! ‘
Morket Voluo of Assels § SN0 S SRS 1
Actiiaat Value of Asacls $ SONIBAOR S SRS '
Enlry At Nomul Aseried Liabllity 5 6B981S) 5 ONN76STI
Prosent Value of Accunwlated Derefits S 689EY519 S ON76971
Vunding Ratlo - Aciuadal Valus of Asscisasa
Perceotape of Present Value of Accunmulated Benefile 86,14 806.4%
Funding Rutlo—~Market Valus of Assstans o
Percealige of Pressnt Valuo of Accumulited Benefits .74 192K
Funding Ratlo Discount Rate 7.0% 70%
Number of Lives tacluded bn the Valuatlon 413 425
Present Volaz of All Future Benefils § 6898383 5 ONNT6OTI
9
BOARD OF EDUCATION conmamiaginp
Required Supplementary Information
Changes In Net Penslon Linbility (NPL) by Source
|
Total Pension Plon Biduclary Net Penslon i
Liabllity Net Roaltion Liablitty t
() ) {n) - {b) l
Balances a 06/30/2017% $67,981,453 $58,784,777 $9,196,676 !
Chenges for the year:
Service Cost 30 $0
Interest $4,532,053 §4,532,053
Chenges of benefit terms 50 10
Differences between expected and actual expesience (5689,853) ($689,853) .
Changes of sisumptions $820,541 $890,544
Conlributions - employer $551,669 ($551,669)
Conlributions - employeo 30 50
Nel Investment Incomo $4,812,557 (54,812,557)
Benefit pagments, Including refunds of e contribuilans (56,587,091) (36,587,091) $0
Admintstalive exponse (5168,064) $168,064
Other changsy 30 30
Net chenges (31,854,250) (51,390,929 {$463,428)
Balances at 06/30/2018% $66,127,103 $57,391,848 $8,133,255
10




BOARD OF EDUCATION

"
CONSULIING CROUP
Colewlution of OASD 68 Peaskn Evpente for Meaturimint Perhd Endid Juny 30,2010
Tobn Penafen Fon Pdudary Rt Peatten Defenrd Deforved
Usbhlty Hel Poaliton Ltllity Culllowrs of Inflanyel Pemton
Q [OR0)] ftrsarees Ruosren Expiniy
Diliacerat 06002017 HIANAD] RRTALINIES $9,186478 spnsn 24641
Oheanes fog ayear; ——
SnfeeCort . . .
Tederast 4,532,058} 4,332,080} 4,391,083
Ghangts of beneliy iy . . .
DIMicnces batnwea expected aad xeh) sxperdencs (849059 ($19453) - . (65,033)
Chinges of sumenmptlons Wil 350,841 . - 150,441
Coatibtlens « casployse 351,689 {551£69) :
Contdbulloat - uplojxa . . .
Prefected Rarmlags oq prailes plaalavuinents 1521020 {.o1,10) [1X3{RT1)]
Differeates bitaven profected aad actan] esplipe 19147 [GAP} )] . TH.850 (iuan
Beaufit prymeauy, inctediog refeds ofea eontdbutions (6.517,001) ©snmn . .
Adnlalitnive expears Q164,064) 161,084 168084
Oherehasges . . -
Hxpeateforbepluntey difered anouale {1,329,620) {516470) 942,950
Mitehiagel 18340 {1280929) {183421) 11,323,429) - 128410
Biluaseant (61072018 $66,122,10) $5139 M8 $4,7133.488 $21483042 $2473,18¢ 12448
nge o Moy Jed 6473872010
Chiagals o Mt Peatloa Liabilty {63411y
Lestt Change fa Delurmed Outltony 1,519,610
Pz Chaaga §s Delerned tallows 12640
Pt Exploper Comtiitutiony 331469
Tobh 110

i1
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'
UNIFORMED OFFICERS’ PENSION PLAN BB,
PRINCIPAL RESULTS OF THE VALUATION
Below I8 n sommery of the prinelpal roxulls of thix ysor's valuatlon compated with the previous
valusilon, Ambunts Tor ¢ooh valuntion perlod roflest o uotuardnl cost method, srsumptions and plen
benafits In effcol nt that limo,
Arof Asof

‘ o Jaunary 1, 2037 January ), 2018
A olly Determined Contribull $ 3,298,465 § 5,674,613
Percenlego of Payroll 21.66% 21.60%
Bspeoled Employes Contribuilon § 1467406 § 1383810
SUPPORTING INFORMATION
Murkot Vatus of Asieis § 159237917 § 182,831,364
Actuards! Volue of Assely § 163,646,082 § 174,809,422
BAN Accrued Liabllity § 203488300 § 218497970
Present Volus of Accumulated Benefils $ 17s,16498) § 186435628
Fendlog Ratlo - Markst Value of Assets s & Percentogo of
Present Valuo of Accumulated Benelits 90.91% 98.07%
Funding Retlo - Actuariol Valus of Astets as 8 Percenlago of
Protent Volus of Acoumulnled Benolits 93.42% 93.76%
Fuading Rallo Djssount Rate 7.00% 7.25%
Number of Lives Included n the Veluation 7o 725
Protent Value of el Futuro Bonofils § 25,678,012 § 235494220 18

UNIFORMED OFFICERS’ PENSION PLAN BB,

Required Supplementary Informntion
Changes In Net Ponslon Liabllity (NPL) by Source

‘Totn) Penslon Flan Yiduclnry Not Penston
Linbility Nel Positlon Linblilty
(a) () (0) - (b)
Brlances t 06/30/2017* 207,960,660 $168,791,309 $19,169,351
Changes for the year!
Servica Cost §2,779,465 $2,779,465
Interest $14,445,07 ' $14,445,037
Changes of benefit {ems 30 $0
Dlfferences between expecied and sctusl exporience $6,768,821 36,768,821
Changes of assumplions 53,143,809) ($3,183,809)
Contribullons ~ smployer $5,329,976 {§5,320,976)
Conlrdbutlons - emplayeo 51,350,916 ($1,350,916)
Net Investment Income $13,610,856 ($13,610,856)
Benelli p , Including refunds of eo ibutl ($8,915,702) (§8,215,702) $0
Adminlstentivo expenso ($442,395) §442,395
Other changes 50 $0
Nal changes 311,893,812 $10,933,681 $960,131
Balancey al 06/30/2018¢ $219,854472 $179,724,990 $40,129,482
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UNIFORMED OFFICERS’ PENSION PLAN st
CONSULIING QROUP
Coleulatlsn of GABD €9 Pentlen Erpumae for Mossurian] Puted Xnded June 39, 2018
Toht Wailen Hon Ndudsry HetRenston Milored Bulersed
Lisbitity HilFaliten Uiy Outflorrs of Inflows el Pearlen
0 ) [OX L) Tersursit RNesowrees Baptan
Didaaeas 002017 $207940.660 3163791303 $39,164,351 E2IRHALL 3940438
Chusgi for hayean
Senies Cort 2,TI9ASS TS 271465
Qterest 1444500 1507 A7
. Chugeyefbenelittemy . . 4
Dilfsreces batween expicied ind acknl weptrients (% 1] gl 3463367 . 104,454
Chasger of wnplions @) [EA3R 0 - 2103238 [171%11}
Coatiibutloar s employes 8219976 (835916
Cealifallonl « emplopee (350046 (1350946) {1,350848)
Prejeciod Earmtags oo peatkon plia lavcitneal) 121 Mmanan) [Qhpiab]
Diffetsnies betwyen profected nd actnl eunlogs 181501 [(L EAL])) . 1,310065 Q11316
Teie it payueats, lactudlag ssfvads of ea contatbullony 1.915701) (315,71 - .
Adplafilntive expase Qa5 42998 442098
Oberehage - . .
Expents for beglunlag defermed dmouats [OOSR £ 7.1 ) ) N 7.2 120} 3l
Hatchuages 1189812 10,923,681 560131 S13.40 21884
Tadeaces at 050072018 $29A8dATE $179245%0 $40,29.402 $24,967,09 $11,250092 9,010,651
0
anlen Bapense for Mersuremt, d1d 0fAN014
Chiagen tha Het Peatlon Ly 940,134
Leas Changa fa Defirred Outflont (S13,110)
Plat Change 1a Delerved Bons 2245651
Plo Employui Ceatrfiviloos SN9S78
Toud 8,010,481
i5
i
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Knox County Disability Plan
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EMPLOYEE DISABILITY BENEFIT PLAN

cojsimie GHBUP
VALUATION AS OF 1/112018
PIUNCIPAL RESULTS 0¥ THE VALUATION
el 15 o sumniary of the princlpal resulls of this yeads valuatlon compared witlh the previvws
vatustlon, Amounts for each \'olumron period tefleet the actiardal cost method, nssurapiions and pla
benals fn elfeet ol thol tins,
Asof Asef
January 1,2017  Jonuary 1, 2018
CONTRIBUTION LIMITATIONS
Anoual Requlred Contribution $453,466 $503,685
SuUp) ) (8]
Murket Value of Assols $1,544,3%0 $1,613,772
Actuarial Valuo of Assels . $1,653,350 $1,580,887
Briry Age Nomio! Accrued Liability $2,670,327 $3,450,463
Yunding Ratlo Discount Rato 71.00% 7.00%
Number of Lives Included In tho Valualon 4,935 5,099
Prosent Value of All Futuro Boneflls $4,750,199 $4,994,479
17
EMPLOYEE DISABILITY BENEFIT PLAN o
Schedules of Required Supplementary Informntlon (RST)
Schiedute of Chianges {n the Net OPED Liabiiity (NOL) and Relnted Ratlos
Totel OFEB  Flan Blduclory Nel OPED
Liabiilty Net Yosttlon Liablitty
(n) (b) -
Belances at 06/30/2017% §2,790,372 $1,270,556 $1,519,816
Clisngos for the year:
Service Cost ' $315,236 §315,216
Inlerest $208,878 | $208,878
Changes of benolit ferms 30 30
Differences bet pected and actunl experd $1,052,678 $1,052,678
Changes of assumptions (§618,044) ($618,044)
Conlributlons - employer $1,166,514 (5),166,514)
Contributlons - smployeo 50 50
Net Investmont incomo $165,366 ($165,366)
Benefit pagments, Including refunds of ee contributlons ($247,446) ($247,446) 30
Administratlve oxpento (81,351,344) §1,351,344
Other changos ($12,954) © $12.954
Net changes $113,302 5279,864 $991,166
Balancos al 06/30/2018% $3,501,674 3990,692 $2,510,982

o dettsming tha Tolad OPED Litbillty s of each 0670/, tha oblily based ondsta ns of 01OV by volled forward wsing hw discount rate fnelMect on
06n0I,

18
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EMPLOYEE DISABILITY BENEFIT PLAN

<
CONSULTING GROUP
Sehedules of Required Esppliratntery Informuilen (LS
Sehidule of Chingtsla the th) OFED Linbility Q{OLY nd Related Retlay
Tolsl OPED Pisn Fdudary Ritopen Diferred Piferd
Lisblilty Het Pasllion Losblity Oulflews of 1allews of OPEB
[0) ®) )-8 Regurets Rugsurser Espentt
Dilusces 04402017 $1,75037 L0888, SLSISANE $0 3
Chunge for thayesn
Srovlzo Cort N8 31588 31523
taterent 20340 wen N
Chuaged of beaelli fermy . . -
Dffertacss batween expected 1ad actosl expestencs 1052610 1052,678 6558 r. Ne,120
Chusges of Mrvmptloa 18 (818,040 . 32448 (145,599}
Conlifbatioar  mploper FALAI (h166,514)
Contfbeifont employoe . - .
Profested Exmings oo OPBN plas faveslmeats 4,068 {14,065) C14,063)
Differcares behvwen profected aad sctvr] uralepn PHA (93,301) .- nol (I%,266)
Beachil payments, lnckodlog toFuadt of o eontibutlons QaIkis) (1AL8) . -
Admleliliove expeats (IS 138,16 1390
Olkerthuages {11,954) 12984 11,95‘
Hapatd for beglenlag €afened smomty
Nelshuages 21130 (3 LI TN 1)9!5' SIS,Q
Beleacss a1 04A0VI03N $1301.67 5950492 51,210911 $TI6331 S505408 $1916.000
OPED Eaperae fer Musjoromtat Falod Endtd 0862018
Chuage £4 e JR1OPDB Labllly 991,166
Leas Chaage da Defered Qulllons Q16,538)
Plort Chusge s Dofemd laflony $05At8
Flan Eenpleyer Coatdtuticat 166,81
Toll 1926409
19

ASSETS, LIABILITIES & CONTRIBUTION REQUIREMENTS cmtm

GLOSEDDD CYEAGHERS

DISABILITY

§72,372,120 $07,478,074 $235,494,220 $4,994.470
Ay
$44,844,040 $59,849,534 $162,031,364 $1613,172
$00,006,134 $67,170,87¢ $105,435,020 NA
84.3% vo.2% 08,1Y, NIA
$70,205 $0 $1,083,610 NIA
43,462,002 §476.234 $6,674,813 $503,895
$20,428,084 0,733,258 $40,120,402 $2,610,002
59.5% 86.8% 81.1% NIA
$3,353,675 $1,744.348 40,018,851 $1,028,608

20
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